ECONOMIC CRIME COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF LONDON POLICE AUTHORITY BOARD

Monday, 16 November 2020

Minutes of the meeting of the Economic Crime Committee of the City of London Police Authority Board held virtually on Monday, 16 November 2020 at 9.00 am

Present

Members:

Deputy James Thomson (Chairman) Nicholas Bensted-Smith

Tiis Broeke Alderman Emma Edhem Alderman Timothy Hailes **Deputy Robert Merrett** Benjamin Murphy James Tumbridge Deputy Philip Woodhouse Dawn Wright

City of London Police Authority:

Simon Latham **Deputy Chief Executive**

Deputy Head of Police Authority Team Oliver Bolton

Polly Dunn Town Clerk's Department Chloe Rew - Town Clerk's Department James Gibson - Chamberlain's Department

City of London Police Force

Clinton Blackburn - T/Commander

Rebecca Riggs - Detective Chief Superintendent

Christopher Glover - City of London Police Alix Newbold - City of London Police Jennifer V - City of London Police

1. **APOLOGIES**

Apologies were received from Andrew Lentin.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were none.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED, that – the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 October 2020 be agreed as a correct record.

4. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

The Chairman advised that moving forward, there would be a Chair's verbal update and a National Lead Force verbal update in both public and non-public to address key issues not covered elsewhere in the agenda.

Chairman's Update

- National Lead Force: a report was presented to the Association of Police and Crime Commissioners West Midlands Fraud Forum in mid-November which addressed the role of the Force as national lead on Action Fraud. This coincided with a report by West Midlands done in conjunction with Birmingham University which sought to comment on the successes, strategies and shortfalls of addressing economic crime. This received coverage in The Times around fraud and past criticisms around Action Fraud. The Chairman was working with the Force on this to improve how the Force engages with West Midlands around many recommendations from the report and forum, and to ensure appropriate public narrative around this.
- The Home Office was conducting a review of the Strategic Policing Requirements for Police Forces in England and Wales, with an aim to ensure that fraud was more prominently included in the strategic policing requirement; that forces were held to account for performance on fraud; and that appropriate skills and resources were allocated to anti-fraud work.
- The Police Authority Board was considering an invitation to present to the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Fraud in May 2021.
- The Force was working on the production of a strategic communication and engagement plan to address how the Force positioned itself with other stakeholders around tackling fraud. This was to ensure that the Force was proactive in its communications.
- The Lead Force Operations Room had had its soft launch, with a full launch anticipated in due course to promote the work of the Force to combat fraud.

T/Commander's Update

- There had been a decrease in economic crime relating to COVID-19, which currently accounted for less than 1% of economic crime.
- The Force recently had a two-week campaign for education and awareness around romance fraud.
- The initial Lead Force Operations Room launch was successful, and the Force was optimistic about a broader launch. There would be a push in December to highlight the importance of elevating fraud on PCCs' agendas and raise awareness of fraud-related crimes.

- Procurement for the new Action Fraud system was ongoing. The soft market testing stage was complete, potential bidders were identified and a business case would be put to the Home Office early next year.
- A spending review bid had been put to the Home Office to improve the capability and capacity across policing, and a response was anticipated for December.
- There had been a push to engage with stakeholders to raise the profile of fraud in Parliament, the public and private sector, as one third of all crime is economic crime.

Questions:

Deputy Woodhouse sought confirmation on when the strategic engagement plan would be presented to the Economic Crime Committee. The T/Commander advised that the draft had been written by the Director of Communications, and needed to be reviewed by the Commissioner and SMB. Although a release date could not be projected, the Chairman requested that the Force circulate a timeline for completion to the Committee with an aim to circulate the plan before Christmas.

Deputy Woodhouse requested information on the extent of the banks' involvement in addressing organised crime. The T/Commander noted that the Force had a close relationship with banks. Banks were heavily involved with initiatives such as the national Economic Crime Centre; Operation Recall which prevented victims' money from going into suspects' accounts; and Operation Olaf which utilised money trapped in making to good effect in combatting economic crime.

5. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT** There was no other business.

6. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC**

RESOLVED, that – under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

7. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2020 be agreed as a correct record, subject to one amendment.

8. **NON-PUBLIC REFERENCES**

Members considered a joint report of the Town Clerk and Commissioner regarding non-public references.

9. ECONOMIC CRIME DIRECTORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT Q2 JULY-SEPTEMBER 2020

Members considered a report of the Commissioner regarding Economic Crime Directorate Performance Q2 July – September 2020.

10. ECONOMIC CRIME ACADEMY UPDATE

Members considered a report of the T/Commander (Economic Crime) regarding the Economic Crime Academy.

11. UPDATE ON PROCUREMENT OF NEXTGEN SYSTEM

Members received a report of the Detective Chief Superintendent relative to an update on procurement of the NextGen System.

12. COVID-19 - COURT BACKLOGS

Members received an update of the T/Commander regarding COVID-19 Court Backlogs.

13. PCC ENGAGEMENT AND FORCE ACCOUNTABILITY

Members received a joint report of the T/Commander and the Town Clerk with respect to PCC Engagement and Force Accountability. The matter was addressed in public session as the Chairman determined that the report did not contain sensitive information exempt by virtue of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. The Chairman noted that the matter was largely covered in the Chairman and Commanders' verbal updates.

RESOLVED, that – the report be received and its contents noted.

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no non-public questions.

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other non-public business.

The meeting ended at 10.45 am	
Chairman	

Contact Officer: Chloe Rew tel. no.: 020 7332 1427

chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk